

NASAL ENDOSCOPY IN THE OUTPATIENT'S DEPARTMENT (OPD)		
Version Number V3		
Date of Issue	February 2021	
Reference Number	NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	
Review Interval 3 Yearly		

Approved By

Name: Anne Marie Broderick

Title: Consultant Gastroenterologist & Chair of the Endoscopy Committee

Date: February 2021

Authorised By

Name: Monica Mullen
Title: CNM II OPD

Name: Bernadette Mc Nicholas

Title: CNM II OPD

Author/s	Stella Santiagu, CNM I Endoscopy OPD Niamh Clohessy, Theatre Quality Improvement Facilitator	
Location of Copies On Hospital Intranet and locally in department		

Document Review History		
Review Date	Reviewed By	Signature

Document Change History	
Change to Document	Reason for Change

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin		
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)		
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	Version Number: 3	
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 2 of 7	



CONTENTS

		Page Number
1.0	Introduction	3
2.0	Definition of Guidelines	3
3.0	Complication Associated with Nasal Endoscopy	3
4.0	Special Considerations	3
5.0	Indications for Nasal Endoscopy	3
6.0	Procedures	4
7.0	References	6

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin		
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)		
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3 Version Number: 3		
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 3 of 7	



1.0 Introduction

The Standard Operating Policy applies to Nursing Staff in the Ear Nose Throat (ENT) Suite of the OPD caring for children requiring a nasal endoscopy. Nasal Endoscopy is commonly used in paediatric ENT for diagnostic purposes.

2.0 Definition of Guidelines

Definition of nasal endoscopy is the use of a flexible fiberoptic endoscope to evaluate upper airways: - nasal passages, nasopharynx, oropharynx and larynx (Ozdemir et al (2020), Tsunoda et al (2020)).

3.0 Complication Associated with Nasal Endoscopy (this is not an exhaustive list)

While the procedure is low-risk, gagging, nosebleeds or coughing may occur as the endoscope is threaded through a nostril. The passage of the flexible endoscope through the nose is usually the most annoying and painful manoeuver to continue the exploration of the airway to the pharynx and larynx. However, the nasal flexible endoscope procedure is the gold standard procedure for airway assessment (Llorente et al (2020), Tsunoda et al (2020)).

4.0 Special Considerations

A nasal endoscopy does not require any special precautions to be taken prior to the procedure. However, a nasal spray or topical decongestant, such as a nasal vasoconstrictor, and topical anaesthetic (numbing medicine) may be inserted inside the nose prior to the procedure. The medication has an unpleasant taste and may cause numbness in the throat for 20 minutes. If this nasal spray is used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure

5.0 Indications for Nasal Endoscopy (this is not an exhaustive list)

- Noisy breathing
- Loss of voice
- Weak cry
- Hoarseness

Equipment	
Nasal endoscopy machine (Storz Aida)	
Blanket (for infant)	
Oxygen (O2) saturations machine	
Apron x 2 (for doctor and nurse)	
Suction machine	
Nasal endoscope scope	
Oxygen saturations probe (age and weight appropriate)	
Alco wipes x 1	
Non-sterile gloves	

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin	
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)	
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	Version Number: 3
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 4 of 7



6.0 Procedures

ACTION	RATIONALE
Check the emergency resuscitation equipment prior	To ensure the procedure is completed smoothly
to commencing the ENT clinic	(Dougherty and Lister 2015)
Turn on the nasal endoscopy machine	To ensure the scope is working and that the
	procedure can continue
Verbal consent is obtained by the team prior to the	To inform the child/family, increasing co-
procedure	operation and promote understanding and trust (Hockenberry and Wilson 2015, Dougherty and Lister 2015, Trigg and Mohammed 2010)
Explain to the child and parent / guardian what will	To inform the child/family, increasing co-
occur and why the procedure needs to be performed	operation and promote understanding and trust
	(Hockenberry and Wilson 2015)
Ensure privacy for the child throughout the treatment	To maintain dignity in accordance with the
Decontaminate hands	To reduces transfer of micro-organisms (CHI 2019 Hand Hygiene Policy.)
Put on apron and gloves	To protect personal clothing from occupation body fluid exposure (Infection Control Department 2010b)
Check the date and time the nasal endoscopy scope	The nasal endoscopy scope must have been re-
was re-processed	processed within 3 hours of use or if stored in the
	extended storage endoscopic cabinet in OPD it
	must be reprocessed within 14 days
Prior to the procedure wrap the infant in a blanket	To maintain the infant in a safe and secure position
Position:	To facilitate the smooth running of the procedure,
The child in the procedure chair next to the nasal endoscopy machine independently, for the procedure	ensure the patient is safe and facilitate observation of the patient during the procedure (Trigg and Mohammed 2010)
Or	(35 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
• The infant / toddler in nurse / parent /	
guardian's arms in a sitting position facing	
forward towards the doctor. The parent /	
guardian are positioned in the procedure chair	
next to the nasal endoscopy machine	
The patient should be attached to the O2 saturations	To obtain information via observation which will
monitor, recording the child's baseline observations	be a baseline for immediate action and ongoing
(heart rate and oxygen saturation level) prior to	assessment and assist in developing a plan of
commencing the procedure and for the duration of	action (Children First Guidelines 2017) and to
the procedure	assist in the early detection and management of
	the complications associated with the nasal
	endoscopy procedure

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin		Sláinte Leanaí Éireann
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)		
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	Version Number: 3	CHI
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 5 of 7	Children's Health Ireland

head Reassure the patient and parent / guardian throughout and after the procedure. To help maintain a trusting relationship between the child and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	The nurse positions a hand gently on the patient's	To prevent the patient moving their head during
Reassure the patient and parent / guardian throughout and after the procedure. To help maintain a trusting relationship between the child and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy		
Reassure the patient and parent / guardian throughout and after the procedure. To help maintain a trusting relationship between the child and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy		
throughout and after the procedure. To help maintain a trusting relationship between the child and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To maintain a trusting relationship will will and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) Sucrose 24% is effective in reducing pain during the flexiscope in children (Khalid et al (2019), Kassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019), Vassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019), Vassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019),	Reassure the patient and parent / quardian	
the child and nurse (Hockenberry and Wilson 2010) The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy		To help maintain a trusting relationship between
The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy scope into the patients nasal passage Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy To examine the upper airway To examine the upper airway Sucrose 24% is effective in reducing pain during the flexiscope in children (Khalid et al (2019), Kassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019), Vassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019).		
Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy		, , ,
Once the doctor is finished examining the upper respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above Sucrose 24% is effective in reducing pain during the flexiscope in children (Khalid et al (2019)). Kassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019)). Nasal spray or topical decongestant can cause a temporary sensation of not being able to swallow and the patient nasal endoscopy box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	The doctor carefully inserts the nasal endoscopy	To examine the upper airway
respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	scope into the patients nasal passage	
nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	Once the doctor is finished examining the upper	Sucrose 24% is effective in reducing pain during
be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24% oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	respiratory passages, s/he will gently remove the	the flexiscope in children (Khalid et al (2019),
oral solution can be administered as a safe and effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	nasal endoscopy. Post procedure observations may	Kassab et al (2020), Passariello et al (2019)).
effective analgesic and document same using stamp. If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	be performed, as clinically indicated. Sucrose 24%	
If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	oral solution can be administered as a safe and	
If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	effective analgesic and document same using	
patient should fast for 20 minutes following the procedure. Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy		
Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	If nasal spray or topical decongestant was used, the	Nasal spray or topical decongestant can cause a
Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	patient should fast for 20 minutes following the	temporary sensation of not being able to swallow
the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	procedure.	
place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	Once the nasal endoscopy scope is removed from	In accordance with the policy on Leak Test and
details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	the patient nasal passages, wipe at bedside and	Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post
Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy To maintain accountability through accurate recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	place it in its nasal endoscopic box with patient	Procedure LTMCFBPP-01-2020-MS-NC-V1
Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Dispose of all equipment appropriately Decontaminate hands as above To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy	details, covering it with the red plastic cover. The	
or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy To maintain accountability through accurate recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	scope is then decontaminated in a room in St Anne's	
Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure Dispose of all equipment appropriately Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy To maintain accountability through accurate recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais)	Dressing Clinic by either the Healthcare Assistance	
Dispose of all equipment appropriately To promote safety and prevent cross infection (OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy To promote safety and prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011)	or nurse as per Policy Leak Test and Manual	
(OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and Children 2010) Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure	
Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy Children 2010) To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) To maintain accountability through accurate recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	Dispose of all equipment appropriately	To promote safety and prevent cross infection
Decontaminate hands as above To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais		(OLCHC 2013, Department of Health and
Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011) Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais		,
Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais	Decontaminate hands as above	To prevent cross infection (HSE 2010, Infection
Evaluate and document the procedure in the patient medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais		Control Department 2013, Nurse Practice
medical notes. Place the nasal endoscopy recording of nursing care (An Bord Altranais		Committee 2013, OLCHC 2011)
	•	, , ,
traceability stickers (2 copies) one in the patient 2015)		, ,
	traceability stickers (2 copies) one in the patient	2015)
medical notes and the other in the ENT Diary, along	medical notes and the other in the ENT Diary, along	
with the patient details, recording time and date of	with the patient details, recording time and date of	
the procedure on both traceability stickers.	the procedure on both traceability stickers.	

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin		Slái
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)		
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	Version Number: 3	
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 6 of 7	Chil



7.0 References

HSE Standards and Recommended Practices for Operational Management of Endoscope Decontamination Facilities June 2019 V.1 (QPSD-D-082-1).

HSE Standards and Recommended Practices for Facility Design and Equipping of Endoscope Decontamination Units April 2019 V1.1 (QPSD-D-022-1).

HSE Standards and Recommended Practices for Commissioning, Validation and Testing in Endoscope Decontamination Facilities April 2019 V1.1 (QPSD-D-080-1).

An Bord Altranais (2014) Code of Professional Conduct for each Nurse and Midwife. An Bord Altranais, Dublin

An Bord Altranais (2015) *Recording Clinical Practice Guidance to Nurses and Midwives*, An Bord Altranais: Dublin.

Department of Health and Children (2010) Segregation, Packaging and Storage Guidelines for Healthcare Risk Waste. 4th edn. Department of Health and Children, Dublin.

Curry et al (2013) Preoperative Laryngoscopic Examination in Patients Undergoing Repeat Anterior Cervical Discectomy and Fusion

Llorente et al (2020) Design and Development of an Automated Feedback and Scoring System for Self-Directed Learning of Flexible Nasal Endoscopy with an Airway Simulator

Ozdemir et al (2020) The Utility of Endoscope-Assisted Rigd Bronchoscope in Pediatric Airway Foreign Body Removals

Kassab et al (2020) Efficacy of Sucrose in Reducing Pain During Immunisation Among 10-18 Month-Old Infants and Young Children: A Randomised Control Trial

Khalid et al (2019) A Randomised Controlled Trial Comparing the Effects of Honey versus Sucrose as Analgesia During Venepuncture in the Newborns

Dougherty L and Lister S (Eds.) (2015) *The Royal Marsden Hospital Manual of Clinical Nursing Procedures*, 9th edn. Blackwell Science, Oxford.

Health Service Executive (HSE) (2010) Health Protection Surveillance Centre (HPSC) Strategy for the Control of Antimicrobial Resistance in Ireland; Guidelines for the antimicrobial stewardship in hospitals in Ireland, HSE Dublin Ireland

Hockenberry MJ and Wilson D (2015) Wong's Nursing Care of Infants and Children, 10th edn. Mosby, St Louis.

Infection Control Department (2019) Handy Hygiene Policy for CHI Crumlin, Dublin.

Nurse Practice Committee (2017) Aseptic Non-Touch Technique. OLCHC, Dublin.

CHI Crumlin (2020) Safety Statement, Dublin.

Our Lady's Children's Hospital Crumlin (OLCHC) (2018) Waste Management Policy. OLHSC,

Dublin.

Children First National Guidance for the Protection and Welfare of Children (2017) ISBN 978-1-4064-2954-1

CHI Crumlin (2020) Leak Test and Manual Cleaning of Flexible Bronchoscope Post Procedure LTMCFBPP-01-2020-MS-NC-V1

Children's Health Ireland (CHI) at Crumlin		Sláinte Leanaí Éireann	
Document Name: Nasal Endoscopy in the Outpatient's Department (OPD)			
Reference Number: NEOPD-02-2021-SS-NC-V3	Version Number: 3	CHI	
Date of Issue: February 2021	Page 7 of 7	Children's Health Ireland	

Trigg E and Mohammed T (2010) *Practices in Children's Nursing: Guidelines for Community and Hospital*. 3rd edn, Churchill Livingstone, Edinburgh.

Copyright and Disclaimer @2022. Children's Health Ireland at Crumlin, Dublin 12. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means without the prior written permission of the copyright holder. Every effort has been made to ensure that the information provided is accurate and in accord with standards accepted at the time of printing.